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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Chhaya Prakashani Limited (‘the Company'),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Chhaya Prakashani
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Directors' Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The
Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management; :
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Chhaya Prakashani
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

* Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern;

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022 were audited by the
predecessor auditor, S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements vide their audit report dated 23 May 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(186) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down
under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 140 0

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the bestof
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Chhaya Prakashani
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

i. The Company, as detailed in note 48 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023 ;

il. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023 ;

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023.;

a.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 53(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in note 53(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

vi.  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

ot

Tarun Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 507892 A2\ /&)

UDIN: 23507892BGXQVV2658 20 ACCS

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Chhaya Prakashani Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(c)

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Companies Auditor Report Order
Rules (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use

(e)

assets) or intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

(iii)

Chartered Accountants \ <

during the year, including inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage
and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies
of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to
book records.

(b) As disclosed in note 50 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working

capital limit in excess of Rs 50.00 millions, by banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. Pursuant to the terms of the sanction letters, till the time such limit
remains unutilised/undrawn the Company is not required to file any quarterly return or statement
with such banks or financial institutions.

(a)The Company has provided loans to Others during the year as per details given below:
Z in millions

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year:

- Others 35.00*
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above

cases:

- Others# 37.53%

* excluding loans extended during the year
# including interest accrued
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Chhaya Prakashani Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company. The Company has not made any investment or given any security or
provided any guarantee or granted any advances in the nature of loans during the year.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal
and interest are regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies, firms, LLPs
or other parties.

(e) The Company has granted loans which had fallen due during the year and such loans
were renewed during the year. The details of the same has been given below:

Z in millions

Total | Aggregate Nature of Percentage of
loan amount of | extension (i.e. | the aggregate
amount | overdues renewed/ to the total
granted of extended/fresh loans or
during existing loan provided) advances in
Name of the party the loans the nature of
year renewed loans granted
(A) (B) during the
year
[(B) Total of
(A)]
DS Digital Private Limited 5.00 71.85 205.20%
Safari Digital Education - 194.97 Extension of 557.06%
Initiatives Private Limited loan tenure
S Chand Edutech Private - 17.00 48.57%
Limited
Convergia Digital 30.00 -
Education Private Limited NA NA
Total 35.00 283.82 - 810.83%

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, which are
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments made
and guarantees provided by it, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any
transaction covered under section 185 of the Act and section 186 of the Act in respect of security.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services / business
activities. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

/
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Chhaya Prakashani Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont'd)

(vii)(a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Chartered Accountants

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature Gross Amount Period to Forum where | Remarks,
the of dues Amount paid which the dispute is if any
statute (Fin under amount pending
millions) Protest relates
(Fin
millions)
0.37 Nil | AY 2014-15 NA
0.38 Nil | AY 2016-17 | commissioner NA
Income of Income Tax
Tax Act, Income (Appeals)
1961 tax 3.03 0.61 | AY 2018-19 NA
7.43 1.79 | AY 2013-14 Assessing NA
to AY 2018- Officer
19

According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation
during the current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any previous years.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short
term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes. '
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Chhaya Prakashani Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary and associate company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary and associate company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

(xi) (a)

(c)

(xii)

(xiii)

the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the

Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act]. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have

an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act. However, the Company
has an internal audit system which, in our opinion, is commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the

(xv)

(xvi)

period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company. *
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Chhaya Prakashani Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 (Cont’d)

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the Company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility in respect of any ongoing or other than
ongoing project as at the end of the financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

! |«
Tarun Gupta K

Partner

AN S
\ \\‘-—‘— N/

Membership No.: 507892

UDIN: 23507892BGXQVV2658

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023
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Annexure B

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Chhaya Prakashani Limited (‘the
Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note')
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including
adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the ICAIl prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAIl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements .

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Chhaya
Prakashani Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Cont’d)

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

,/W}‘W (% )
Tarun Gupta \\
Partner

Membership No.: 507892
UDIN: 23507892BGXQVV2658

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

Chartered Accountants



Chhaya Prakashani Limited
S CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(¥ in millions)

As at As at
NOtS 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Assets
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment 3 14.76 7.69
Right-of-use assets 4 79.14 3875
Intangible assets 5 235 1,99
Financial assets:
- Investments 6 132.96 200.60
- Loans T 102.85 506.70
- Other financial assets 8 58.50 2.26
Deferred tax assets (net) 9 23.50 9.28
Other non-current assets 10 11.78 435
Total non-current assets 425.84 771.62
Current assets:
Inventories 11 237.36 161,76
Financial assets:
- Investments 12 206.01 14.50
- Trade receivables 13 166.31 252,95
- Loans 7 781.52 306.55
- Cash and cash equivalents 14 97,64 86.11
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15 - 31.90
- Other financial assets 8 15.70 11.26
Other current assets 10 4 82 2.76
Total current assets 1,509.36 867.79
Total assets 1,935.20 1,639.41
Equity and liabilities
Equity:
Equity share capital 16 11.14 11.14
Other equity 17 1,373.35 1,111.54
Total equity 1,384.49 1,122.68
Non-current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 18 282 .85 33002
- Lease liabilities 19 7585 41.53
Provisions 20 1.17 1.43
Total non current liabilities 359.87 372.98
Current liabilities:
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 21 3891 20.00
- Lease liabilities 19 4.40 6.33
- Trade payables 22
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3212 2398
total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 66.02 65.93
- Others financial liabilities 23 443 11.45
Other current liabilities 24 19.46 16.06
Current tax liabilities (net) 25 2549 -
Total current liabilities 190.83 143.75
Total equity and liabilities 1,935.20 1,639.41
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Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.© 001076N/N500013

O~

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

For and on bglalf of the Board of Directors of

l\
Himgnshu Gupta
Dirgetor

00054015

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

Prateek Dhanuka
Chief Executive Otlicer

Place: New Delhi
Date; 25 May 2023
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Kumar Jhunjhnuwala

Director
DIN:00282988

Place: New Delhi
Date, 25 May 2023

M’&‘r/@é’.’ 441: /94

Sudakshina Saha
Financial Controller

Place: Kolkata
Date: 25 May 2023



Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN : U22122WB2006PLC111821
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(¥ in millions)

Year ended

Year ended

Notes
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Revenue from operations 26 1,153.89 863.27
I Other income 27 127.81 73.20
111 Total income 1,281.70 936.47
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 28 375.50 206.90
Purchase of stock-in-trade 29 18.79 10.46
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 30 (53.56) 24.71
Employee benefits expense 31 108.81 97.29
Finance costs 32 51.34 36.68
Depreciation and amortization expenses 33 11.09 10.44
Other expenses 34 351.67 275.90
Total expenses 863.64 662.38
V  Profit before exceptional item and tax 418.06 274.08
Exceptional items 35 50.00 -
V1 Profit before tax 368.06 274.08
VII Tax expense: 36
1) Current tax 111.00 83.33
2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 2.64 18.04
3) Deferred tax (14.11) (2.48)
Total tax expense 99.53 98.89
VIIT Profit for the year 268.53 175.19
IX Other comprehensive income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefits plans (0.42) (01.66)
Income tax effect 0.11 0.16
X Total comprehensive income for the year 268.22 174.69
XI Earnings per equity share (in %) 37
1) Basic 2,409.75 1,592.64
2) Diluted 1,625.64 1,005.95
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

—

Tarun Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 507892

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chhaya Prakas

Hifanshu Gupta
irector
DIN:00054015

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

Prateek Dhanuka
Chief Executive Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023

ni Limited

At S

Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Director
DIN:00282988

Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023
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Sudakshina Saha
Financial Controller

Place: Kolkata
Date; 25 May 2023



Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821

Cash flow statement for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(Z in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 368.06 274.08
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:-
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11.09 10.44
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (2.41) 5.10
Interest income (88.63) (64.45)
Interest on unwinding of security deposits 0.54 0.09
Reversal of financial liability (0.09) {0.27)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.07) (0.03)
Net gain on sale of investments (26.91) (8.42)
Provision for diminution in value of investments 50.00 -
Profit on cancellation of lease (9.77) g
Deemed capital contribution 0.08 0.34
Foreign exchange fluctuation loss 0.05 0.03
Finance costs 47,56 3535
Provision for expected credit loss, advances and bad debts written-off 3.66 1.57
Operating profit before working capital changes 353.16 253.83
Adjustments for movement in:
Trade receivables 82,98 (72.49)
Other assets (33.67) (2.73)
Inventories (75.60) (14.97)
Trade payables 8.32 (37.65)
Other habilities and provisions (4.96) 2.34
Cash generated from operations 330.23 128,33
Direct taxes paid (net of refinds) (92.80) (66.28)
Net cash generated from operation (A) 237.43 62.05
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (10.34) (3.16)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.17 0,14
Loans to related parties (net) (71.12) (118.91)
Purchase of non-current investments - (100.01)
Purchase of current investments (196.40) (23.26)
Proceeds from non-current investments 44,55 -
Proceeds from current investments 7.29 149.22
Interest received 88.10 2588
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (137.75) (72.10)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of non-current borrowings (19.04) (8.33)
Proceeds from non-current borrowings - 107.94
Payment for principal portion of lease liabilities (6.60} (5.01)
Payment for interest portion of lease liabilities (5.40) (4.96)
Repayment of principal portion of debenture (40.00) -
Interest paid on debentures (1.34) (13.83)
Interest paid on borrowings (15.77) (13.96)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (C) [(&] (88.15) 61.85
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 11.53 5130
Cash and cash equivalents - at the beginning of the year 86.11 3431
Cash and cash equivalents - at the end of the year 97.64 86.11
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 39 207
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 93.73 5511
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 28.93
Total Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 14) 97.64 86.11

(This space has bgtn left blank imtentionally)
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PLCI11821

Cash flow statement for the vear ended 31 March 2023
(2 in millions)

Notes:
1. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
p As at As at
Particul Non-cas 5
s i 31 March 2022 Sl Dowoishshanges | < march 2638
Non-current borrowings (including current maturities) 350.02 (59.03) 11.86 302.85
Short term borrowings (excluding current maturities) - - 18.91 18.91
Lease liabilities (refer note 39) 47 86 (12.01) 44 .40 80.25
397.88 (71.04) 75.17 402.01
. As at As at
Particul 5 -
" 31 March 2021 it Now ooy | o Ntk i3
Non-current borrowings (including current maturitics) 240.77 99.61 9.64 350.02
Lease liabilities (refer note 39) 52.51 (9.97) 333 47.86
293.28 89.64 14.96 397.88
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP For and on behalf,6f the Board of Director of

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

:M/Lf

Tarun Gupta [ f X ot Dinesh” Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Sartien | f 0| Director
Membership No.: 507892 | » [ * DIN:00282988
Place: New Delhi / Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 25 May 2023 ) Date: 25 May 2023 Date: 25 May 2023
4{;/2% Al U
Prateek Dhanuka Sudakshina Saha
Chief Executive Officer Financial Controller
Place: New Delhi Place: Kolkata

Date: 25 May 2023 Date: 25 May 2023
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2.1

2.2

Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2023

Corporate information

Chhaya Prakashani Limited (the Company) (formerly known as Chhaya Prakashani Private Limited) is a public company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the provision of the companies Act, 1956and subsequently converted into a
public company under section 18 of the Companies Act, 2013. The registered office of the Company is located at 1,
Bidhan Sarani College Street, Kolkata, West Bengal- 700073.

The Company is primarily engaged in printing, publishing and sale of books.
Significant accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time), presentation
requirements of Division II of Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11) and the guidelines
issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities:

1) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).
ii) Equity settled employee share-based payment plan measured at fair value.

iii) Defined benefit liabilities are measured at present value of defined benefit obligation.

iv) Certain financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost.

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis.

The financial statements are presented in INR “(Indian Rupees)” or “Z”. All values are rounded to the nearest million, and
two decimals thereof, except when otherwise indicated.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset as
current when it is:

i Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
ii.  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii.  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
i.  Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

N J {




2.3

2.4

Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2023

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentational currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency. Functional
currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency
in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date
the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit or loss.
Fair value measurement
The Company measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
i in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
¢ Level I — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
® Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable
* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thdt is significant to the fair value ment is
unobservable.
el \\
- “\\. R\

J



Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company’s management. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

Ateach reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.
i. Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (refer note 2.18 A(ii))
ii. Disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 43)
iii. Investment in unquoted and quoted equity shares (note 12)

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a 5-step process:
1. Identifying the contract with a customer
2. Identifying the performance obligations
3. Determining the transaction price
4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
5. Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied

Sale of goods
Revenue from sale of books is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,

i.e. on delivery of books to customer.

Sale of services
Revenue from sale of service is recognised on accrual basis and when services are provided.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of books,
the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-
cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any). /
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

e Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates as this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining
estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price.

e Turnover discounts

The Company provides turnover discounts to certain customers once the value of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the most likely
amount method for contracts with a single-turnover threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
more than one turnover threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of turnover thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the
requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected
future discounts.

e Cash discounts

The Company provides cash discounts to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated
time given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.
The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a
refund liability for the expected future discounts.

e Additional discounts

Further, at the time of annual settlement with customers, which may not coincide with the financial year, additional
discounts are offered based on the negotiations agreed with respective customers. The provision for additional
discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends. The Company then applies the requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future discounts.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract.

Other income

Interest income
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into acgount the amount outstanding arfds
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and othgr interest-bearing financial assef§’d
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited

2.6

_~~beeome probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferregAax asset to be gecovered.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement
of profit and loss.

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity) are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. The Company
offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

e In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates , deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised

)5 )
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2.8

Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and equipments are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as incurred.

Property, plant and equipments which are not ready for intended use as on the date of balance sheet are disclosed as
capital work-in-progress.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful
economic lives of the asset. The management has adopted life of assets as suggested by Schedule I of the Act.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired period of lease whichever is less.
Assets costing X 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

‘Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulate impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are #0t capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when it is incurred.

J \




2.9

2.10

Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Amortisation and useful lives
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annual ly, either individually
or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a
prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Applications Finite (4-5 years) Amortised on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Trade mark Finite (5 years) Amortised on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Copyright Finite (5 years) Amortised on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Software Finite (3-5 years) Amortised on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives

Investment in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to its
recoverable amount. On disposal of these investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amounts are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shorjste eases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease ]ial?ies to make lease payments ang 2

representing the right to use the underlying assets
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Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used
to determine such lease payments).

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

 Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

« Finished goods and Work-in-progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined

on first in, first out basis.

+ Stock-in-trade: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

(This space has been lefi fank intentionally)
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Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasin g rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.
The general terms of the payment is between 60-90 days. Refer
contracts with customers. /
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In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding
to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

* Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains
and losses (debt instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A *financial asset™ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met;

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss.
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OC1 (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)

A “financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit
and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the
equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

\ %\ (This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (equity instruments)

All equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The Company makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

[f the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the statement of
profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within

equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of
payment has been established.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

® The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

® The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to

repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:
e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt s éé? {
7z
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trade receivables and bank balance -
“e Cﬁhi{a_c_t assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 115, ; K%JKATA L
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
° Trade receivables

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument.

 Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its frade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a)  For financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset
meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b)  Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since, financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment
allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading

are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain
or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in

the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Re-classification of financial assets
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition,
no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets
which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines
change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifigsfin:

_—nextreporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any prevjoq :
gaius,\lg'zs_ses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. <c( KOLKATA
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.14  Employee benefits

Employee benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund and Employee State Insurance Corporation (ESIC). The Company
recognizes contribution payable to the provident and ESIC scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution
already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in
future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailm ent, and
® The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

° Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

2.15  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, buronly when the reimbursement js-i
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement ofprofit and loss net of any reimty
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly with in
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Therefore, in order to
determine the amount to be recognised as a liability or to be disclosed as a contingent liability, in each case, is inherently
subjective, and needs careful evaluation and judgement to be applied by the management. In case of provision for
litigations, the judgements involved are with respect to the potential exposure of each litigation and the likelihood and/or
timing of cash outflows from the Company, and requires interpretation of laws and past legal rulings.

Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are
considered contingent assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed and disclosed after adjusting the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,
if any, except when the results will be anti-dilutive.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent liabilities). The management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgement

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

i) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

__For the.lease contracts that includes extension and termination optiens. The Company applies judgey 5t
whetherit is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the optjbn to renew or terminate the lease. [I
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~considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term

all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the
commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow
over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company “would have to pay’, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and
conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

ii) Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of books include cash discounts and turnover discounts and a right to return the goods that
give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition,
the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reportin g date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

i) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

ii) Defined employee benefits plans

The cost of the defined employee benefits obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount ra; Wbgient
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the
respective countries.

Further details about defined employee benefit plans are given in note 38.

iii) Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. For details of allowance of expected credit loss(ECL), please
refer note 13.

iv) Impairment of financial and non-financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU”) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (‘CGU”).

Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

v) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets
Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment and intangibles at
the end of each reporting period. Factors such as changes in the expected level of usage could significantly impact the

economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets. Consequently, the future depreciation charge could be
revised and may have an impact on the profit of the future years.

(This space has been left blgnk intentionally)
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The Company’s Managing Director assesses the financial performance and position of the Company, and makes
strategic decision and has been identified as the chief operating decision maker. The Company's primary business segment
is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company. As per Indian Accounting Standard 108,
Operating Segments, as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, the Company operates
in one reportable business segment i.e., publishing of books. The geographical information analyses the Company’s
revenue and trade receivables from such revenue in India and other countries. The Company primarily operates in India.
Refer note 45 for segment reporting.

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year
a) Ind AS 103 Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not
significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The amendment did not have any material impact on
financial statements of the Company.

b) Ind AS 16 Proceeds before intended use

The amendment specify that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use. The
amendment did not have any material impact on financial statements of the Company.

¢) Ind AS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the amendment did not have any material impact on
financial statements of the Company.

d) Ind AS 109 Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The amendment did not have any material impact on
financial statements of the Company.

Recent accounting pronouncements which are not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. MCA, vide its circular dated 31 March 2023 has
issued Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 to further amend the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as below:

a) Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statement
_ Requirement to disclose ‘material accounting policies’ instegd of ‘significant accounting
gu:dance included to determine whether the policy is matefial or not.

E' R
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

b) Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Definition of ‘accounting estimates’ now included in the standard enabling distinction between change in

accounting estimates from change in accounting policies.

¢) Ind AS 12 Income Taxes
Transactions that does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences at the time of initial

transaction have now been included in the exemptions for recognition of deferred tax liability and deferred tax
assets in case of taxable temporary differences.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of amendments to the aforementioned accounting standards on its

financial statements.
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Chhaya Prokashani Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821

Non-current investments

(% in milliens)

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Investment in unquoted equity shares, valued at cost
Investment in subsidiary

1,171 (31 March 2022: 1,171} shares of % 100 each fully paid up in M/S Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited 012 0.12
Investment in associate
1,089,087 (3| March 2022 10,89,087 shares) sharcs of ¥ 2 each fully paid up in M/S Edutor Technologics India Private Limited 100.04) 100.00
Less : Impairment of investment (refer note 49) {50.00) =
50.12 100.12
Investment in unquoted equity shares, valued at fair value through profit and loss
Nil (3] March 2022 1) share of ¥ 10 each fully paid up in Neuron Intelligence Private Limited - o1
- .01
| in ung i prefl e shares, valued at cost
3,069,987 (31 March 2022 - $.069,982) 0.01% Nan Cumulative, Non-Participating, Compulsorily Conversible Preference Shares of ¥ 10) cach fully paid %070 sk
up in M/s New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited 5 .
50,70 #0.70
1 in ung d pref shares, valued at fair value through profit and loss
Nil (31 March 2022 : 2,204) Series A compulsarily rtible prefe share of 2 10 each fully paid up in iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited - 17.63
= 17.63
Investments in unguoted government and trust securities
2.136 (31 March 2022 - 2,136) Tax Free Bonds of ¥ 1000 each of Power Finance Corporation Limited 2.14 214
2.14 .14
Total 13296 200.60
A value of ung di 182.96 20060
Apgregate value of impas in value of 50,00 -
Loans
{2 in milligns)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current:
Loans to related parties (refer note 40) 102,85 506,70
Current:
Loans to related perties (refer note 40) 781.52 306.55
Total B84.37 813.25
Considered geod, unsecured #84.37 81325
Recoverable which have significant increase in credit risk :: a
884.37 81325
Notes:
| Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013:
Inchsded in loans and advance are certain loans the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of Companies Act 2003:
x Secured/ Asat Asat
Name of the borrower Purpose Rate of Interest Tenure: Ussscaired 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
DS Digital Private Limited (refer note 3 below) I Year 24861 21230
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited (refer note 3 below) kil bk 2 Year 49796 a44.18
juale :
S Chand Edutech Private Limited purpose 9.70% - 11.10% p.a, 2 Year Unsecured 34.93 3195
New Samswati House Private Limited 3 Years i 10:00
Conyergia Dig:‘taj Education Private Limited. 3 Years 102.85 64,82
B84.37 813.25

Total

* Tenure from date of agreement,

2. There are no loan or advances in the nature of loans, granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and related parties, either severally or jeintly with any other person, that are either repayable on demand or without specifiing

any terms or period of repayment.

3. Based on s internal t and based on the guarantee letter received from the principal promoter of the Helding Company, the Company has assumed that the aforesaid loan balances are fully

recoverable as at 31 March 2023,

ipts of pr

4, In respect of lnans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stip i and the repay fr
5. There is no amount which is overdue for more than 90 days in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to such companics

(Thix space has been fefi blank intentionaily)
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821

8. Other financial assets
(% in millions)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Non-current:

(Unsecured, considered good)

Secunty deposits 3.50 136
Dieposits with original maturity of mone than 12 maonths 35.00 -
58.50 .26
Current:
(Unsecured, considered good)
Sccurity deposits 7.06 34
Interest accrued but not due on deposits 0.32 -
Receivables from related parties {refer note 40) * 4.87 487
Others receivables # 3.25 325
15.70 11.26
Total 74.20 13.52
Non-current 58.50 126
I5.70 1126

Current

* Receivables from related parties pertains to receivables from group companies for reimbursements and ather recoveries
# Other receivables pertains to T 3.25 millions to be indemnified by the erstwhile promaters of Chhaya Prakashani Limited for a tax demand aganst Chhaya Prakashani Limited.

9, Deferred taxes
(¥ in millions)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equip impact of d between tax depreciation and depreciation’ wsation charged in the financial statements 1.76 202
Impact of right of use assets and lease liabilities 0.28 229
Provision for sales returns, discounts and doubtful debts 21.95 4.10
Impact of non deductible expenses 0.31 1.02
Total deferred tax assets 24.30 9.43
Items leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities
Impact of fair value gain on current myvestment 0.80 015
Total deferred tax liabilities 0.80 015
MNet deferred tax assets 13.50 9.28
Note:
Movement of deferred tax assets tax assets/ liabilities presented in balance sheet (2 in millians)
As at Recognised in Asat

31 March 2022 Profit and loss Ocl 31 March 2023
Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets
Propv:lfty. plant and equig impact of between tax deg and dep charged in the 202 (0.26) 7 176
financial statements
Impact of right of use assets and lease habilities 239 (2.01) - 028
Provision for sales returns, discounts and doubtful debts 410 1785 - 2195
Impact of non deductible expenses 1,02 (0.82) 011 031
Total deferrved tax assets 9.43 14.76 o 2430
Items leading to creation of deferred tax linbilities
Impact of fair value gain on current investment 0.15 0,65 - 080
Total deferred tax linhilities 0.15 .65 - 0.80
Net deferred tax assets 9.28 14.11 0.11 23.50

As at Recognised in Asat

31 March 2021 Profit and loss ocl 31 March 2022
Items leading to creation of deferred tax assets
Propeity, plant and equipment: impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreciation/amortisation charged in the 3
financial statements 209 (0.07) -
Impact of right of use assets and lease habilities 1.68 nal z 229
Provision for sales retums, discounts and doubtful debrs 410 - = 410
Impact of non deductible expenses 0.19 0,66 0.16 1.00
Total deferred tax assets 8.06 1.20 0.16 9.43
Items leading to creation of deferred tax liabilities
Impact of fair value gain on current investment 1.43 {1.28) - (.15
Total deferred tax liabilities 1.43 (1.28) = 15
Net deferred tax assets 6.63 248 0.16 9.28

Note - Refer note 36 for effective tax reconciliation.
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821

0.

Other assets:

(% in millions)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Non-current
{(Unsecured considered good)
Prepaid expenses 4.02 121
Tax paid under protest (refer note 48) 240 240
Tax receivable 5.36 0 74
11,78 4.35
Current
(Unsecured considered good)
Prepaid expenses 1.81 L4l
Advances to vendars 2.64 114
Advances to employees 0,37 0,21
4.82 .76
Total 16.60 T.11
Current 482 176
Non-Current 11.78 4.35
Inventories
% in millians)
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Raw materials (at cost) 49,22 1716
Work-in-progress (at lower of cost and net nealisable value) .07 072
Finished goods - stock-in-trade (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 0.08 3
Finished goods (at lower of cost and net realisable value) 126,99 78.11
Total 237.36 161.76
Notes:
Inventories have been reduced by 2 18,15 millionss (31 March 2022; ¥ [5.79 millianss) as a result of write-down to net realizable value.
Current investment
(% in millions)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investment valued at fair value through profit and loss
Investments in mutoal fund {Quoted)
453,84 (31 March 2022; 2,061 ) units of ¥ 2982 45 cach SBI Magnum Low Duration Fund - Regular - Growth 135 .04
11,34,319.27 (31 March 2022; 95.987.07) units of 41,75 of HDFC Floating Rate Debt Fund - Regular - Growth 4736 009
27,79,252.67 (31 March 2022: 1.61,102,93) units of ¥ 49,08 ach HDFC Low Duration Fund - Regular - Growth 13641 754
1.727.70 (31 March 2022: 3,856 ) units of T 24 83 of Templeton India Carparate Bond Opportunitees - Growth 0.04 01l
Nil (31 March 2022: 2,354.22) units of Franklin India Ultra Short Bond Fund - Super Institutional Plan - 0.08
7,54,890 04 (31 March 2022; Nil) units of T 26.82 of HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - Regular - Growth 20.25 %
20541 13.86
Investments in equity shares {Quoted)
40 (31 March 2022 40) shares of ¥ 10 cach fully paid up in M/s Reliance Industries Limited 0.09 ot
21,600 {31 March 2022- 21,600) shares of ¥ 10 each fully paid up in M/s Winsome Breweries Limited 0.24 0.27
300 (31 March 2022: 300) shares of 2 10 each fully paid up in M/s State Bank of India Limited 0.26 025
230 (31 March 2022: 200) shares of 2 10 each fully paid up in M/s Punjab National Bank 001 0.01
.60 0.64
Total 206,01 14.50
Aggregate book value of quoted investment 202.99 13.90
206.01 14.50

Aggregate market value of quoted investment

* fair value gain recognised 2 3.02 millions (31 March 2022; ¥ 0.60 millions),

(This space has been left blank inentionaliy)




Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Notes to financial statements as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U22122WBI006PLC111821

13, Trade receivables
{Z in millions)
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Trade receivables

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered pood 16631 25293
Recervable which have significant increase in credit nisk 19.28 16,29
Receivable credit impaired = =
185.59 269.24
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good e =
Receivable which have signifi increase in credit risk 1928 1629
Recevable credit impaired - -
19.28 16.29
Secured, considered good - =
Unsecured. constdered good 166.3] 23295
Receivable which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Receivable eredit impaired =
Total 166.31 252.95
Trade receivable from related parties (Refer note 40b) 188 -
The movement in impairment of trade receivables as follow:
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening balance 16.29 1629
Additions/ (write-back) (net) 2.99 -
Closing balance 19.28 16.29
No trade or ather receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person,
Below table represents the trade hles ageing:
Outstanding for following periods from the bill date
As at 31 March 2023 Not Due Le,:'sl:::hn (] 6 T:::. to L -2 years Yoy M;;::I::n Total
Undisputed trade receivables
= considered pood 69,23 B8543 11.65 - & - 16631
- which have significant increase m credit risk - 1.09 4.9% 602 2.06 110 15.25
- which are credit impaired - - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables
- considered pood - - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - 0.05 398 403
= which are credit impasred - - - - - - -
69.23 86.52 16.63 602 211 508 18559
Less: Loss allowance - (1.09) (4.98) (6.02) (2.11) (5.08) (19.28)
Total trade receivables 69.23 85.43 11.65 - - - 166.31
O ding for following periods from the bill date
As at 31 March 2022 P Less than 6 6 month to -2y 3Lk Maore than Toial
maonth 1 year 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables
= considered good 207 48 41594 3353 - - - 25295
- which have significant increase m credit risk - - 296 579 2.3 097 12.26
- which are credit impaired = - - - B - +
Disputed trade receivables
- considered good - - - - - " -
= which have significant increase in credit risk = - 0.05 = 228 1.71 404
- which are credit impaired - - - - - - -
20748 41.94 6.54 379 482 2.68 26925
Less: Loss allowance - - (3.01) (3.79) (4.82) (2.68) (16.,29)
Total trade receivables 207.48 41.94 3.53 - - - 252.95

There are no unbilled receivables, henee the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule,

(This space has been lefi blank intenttonally)
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14.  Cash and cash equivalents

(¥ in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balances with banks:
= On current accounts 03.73 3
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 28.93
Cash on hand 391 2.07
Total 97.64 86.11

15, Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(% in millions)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and less than 12 months
Total

(This space has been left blank infentioneally)
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Chhaya Prakashanm Limited
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CIN: U22122WBZ006PLC111821

16,

Share capital
(% in millians)

Asat As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised share capital
555,000 (31 March 2022: 353,000) equity shares of T 100/~ cach 55.30 55.50
Total 55.50 55.50
Issued, subseribed and fully paid equity capital
111,437 (31 March 2022 1,11,437) equity shares of ¥ 100/~ each 11,14 114

11.14 11.14

Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
Authorised share capital No. of shares 2 in millions
As at 31 March 2021 3,55,000 5550
Increase/(decrease} duning the year = =
As at 31 March 2022 5,55,000 55.50
Increase/{decrease) during the vear = 3
Asat 31 March 2023 5,55,000 55.50
Issued equity capital No. of shires T in millions
Equity share of 2 100/~ each issued, subscribed and fully paid {31 March 2022: Equity share of 2 100 each)
As at 31 March 2021 1,11.437 10.14
Asat 31 March 2022 1,11,437 11,14
As at 31 March 2023 111437 10114

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entifled to one vote per share. The Company declarcs and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. No
dividend has been propescd by the Board of Directors during the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 Nil). In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharchelding.

Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years imm ediately preceding 31 March 2023:

For the vear ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 1019
Equity shares alloted as fully paid up - - B335* ~ -
* igsued pursuant to order received from NCLT for | ion of Eurasia Publishing House (Eurasia) with the Company, alloted on 23 May 2022

The Company has not issued any bonus shares nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the current year and preceding five years

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares % of holding No. of shares* % of holding
5 Chand And Company Limited (includi harcholders) 1,11,437 100.00% 1.11,437 100.00%

*includes shares issued pursuant to order received from NCLT for amalgamation of Eurasia Publishing House (Eurasia) with the Company, alioted on 23 May 2022,

Details of shares held by promoters (Holding Company) in the Company

Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares % of holding Mo, of shares %o of holding % ‘h“g!.m
shareholding
S Chand And Company Limited 1,11.437 100.00% 1,11,437 100.00% -
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iI7.

Other equity
(¥ in millions)
As at Asat

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Capital reserve
Balance as the beginnng of reporting year (696, 86) (696.86)
Balance as the end of reporting year (696.86) (696.86)
Security premium
Balance as the beginning of reporting year 11.31 1131
Balance as the end of reporting year 11.31 11.31
General reserve
Balance as the beginning of reporting year 76.50 76.50
Balance as the end of reporting year 76.50 76.50
Debenture redemption reserve
Balance as the beginning of reponting year 22.96 22.96
Less: Decrease during the year (1.07) -
Balance as the end of reporting year 21.8% 22.96
Equity component of 2% optionally convertible debentures
Balance as the begmning of reporng year 48985 489.85
Less: Decrease during the year (7.08) -
Balance as the end of reporting year 482,77 489.85
Retained earnings
Balance as the beginning of reporting year 1,207.39 1,032.70
Add: Profit for the year 268,53 175,19
Less: Other comprehensive loss for the year (net) {0.31) (0.50)
Add: Adj for prep of det 0.63 -
Add: Transfer from debenture redemption reserve 1.07 -
Balance as the end of reporting year 1,477,312 1,207.39
Deemed capital contribution
Balance as the beginning of reporting year 0,34 -
Add: Increase during the vear 0.08 0.34
Balance as the end of reporting year 0.42 0.34
Total 1,373.35 1,111.54

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Capital reserve
The Board of Directors of Chhaya Prakashani Limited ("Company”), in its meeting held on 08 August 2017 approved the scheme of amalgamation of Publishing Services Limited ("PSPL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company with Company. Thereafter, Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 233 of The Companies Act, 2013, had filed an application dated 12 Dy ber 2017 with the Regional Director, Eastem Region,
for amalgamation of PSPL with the Comparty, which was sanctioned by the Regional Director vide its Confirmation Order dated 03 August 2018 and received by the Company on 09 August 2018, Considenng the effect of
the said amalgamation an adjustment of % 0,65 millions resulted into capital reserves in accordance with IND-AS 103.

The Company had received Merger Order from NCLT Kolkata dated 28-04-2022, filed under a scheme of of Eurasia Publishing House (Eurasia) with appointed date as | April 2020 under sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013, Before the merger, Eurasia held an investment of 2 700.00 millions in Chhaya Prakashani Limited, which now stands cancelled as per the order. As & result, a capital reserve of ¥ 69621

millions had been created giving effect of the investment held into the merged entity.

Securities premium
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve ean be utilised only for limited purposes in | with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

General reserve
General reserve represents amount appropnated out of retamed earnings.

Debenture redemption reserve
The Company has issued optionally ible redeemable deb . The C ics (Share eapital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (as amended), requires the Company to create Debenture Redemption Reserve of 25%
(10% as per MCA notification dated 16 August 2019), of the value of the debentures issued, either by a public issue or a private placement basis out of profits of the Company available for payment of dividend. The

amounts credited fo the debenture redemption reserve cammot be utilized by the Company except to redeem debentures. Accordingly, the Company has created Debenture redemption reserve at the rate of 10%5 of financial
of i dhk

Equity component of 2% optionally convertible debentures
The 2% Optionally convertible debentures have been classified as compound ial i This instrument has been split between equity and hability by primarily valung the liability portion without equity
conversion options. The balance between instrument value and liability component had been treated as the value of equity component.

Retained earnings
Retained eamings refer to the net profit(loss) retained by the Company for its core busi ivities. Also includ gains on defined benefit plans

Deemed capital contribution
Deemed capital contribution represents Employee stock option (ESOP) cost allocated by the Holding fPompany for stock options issued to employees of the Company




Chhaya Prakashani Limited
Naotes to financial statements as at 31 March 2023
CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821

18.

Non-current borrowings
(2 in millions)

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Debentures

6,516 {31 March 2022 6,916} 2% of Iy convertible red ble det of T 1,00,000 each issued at par (refer note b below) 23119 24041

Term loans

Indian rupee loan from financial institutions (refer note a below) 71.66 9167

Loans from related parties

Niga Publishers & Pnnters Private Limited (refer note ¢ below) - 17.94

Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 21)

Term loans

Indsan rupee loan from financial institutions {refer note a below) 20000 20.00
20.00 20,00

Total 281.85 330,02

Secured 51.66 .67

Unsecured 23119 258.35

MNature of security: Terms of repayment:

Term loan Repavable in 60 equal monthly installment beginning from 5

“Term loan from Tasa Capital Financial Services Limited has been obtained in financial year 2022, The loan has been secured November 2021

against: (i) First and exclusive charge over the current assets and movable fixed assets of the Chhaya Prakashani Limited,

(iiNegative lien on propenty located at plot no, 2044, Sahibabad Industrial Area, Site IV, Ghaziabad (UP), owned by Vikas Rate of interest 9.75% - 11 30% pa.

Publishing House Private Limited (fellow subsidiary), {iii) E ble and uncenditional corporate guaraniee of § Chand and (31 March 2022: 9.75% floating )

Company Limited {(helding company) and Vikas Publishing House Private Limited (fellow subsidiary) and (iv) Irrevocable and

unconditional personal g by Mr. Hi hu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala.

Debentures

2% optional ible det issued to § Chand And Company Limited (Holding Company), are unsecured and redeemable within a period of 20 vears fiom the date of allotment {7 February 2018). Compound

financial instrument has been bifurcated between equity and liability by primarily valuing the liability portion without equity conversion options, During the year, the Company has made pre-payment of debenture amounting
Z 40.00 milions which is adjusted against financial liability component by ¥ 33.34 millions and equity component by T 6.46 millions.

The Company has obtained unsecured loan from Migja Publishers & Printers Private Limited and carries interest rate equal to State Bank of India’s 2 Year MCLR plus 250 BPS pa The facility will be convertible at the
option of the Company after | year from date and if not 1 on or before 3 years from agreement date, the loan shall be repaid by the Company on completion of 3 years,

Loan covenants
The Company is required to comply with certain debt as soned in the loan ag) for term loans, failure of which makes the loan o be repaid on demand at the discretion of the bank, During the current

financial vear, there have been no default in repayment and no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowings.

The money mised by way of tenm loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(This space has been lefl blank intentionally)
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19,

20,

21,

Lease liabilities

(T in millions)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Lease linbilities - non-current (refer note 39) 7385 41.53
Lease liabilities - current (refer note 39) 4.40 6.33
Total B0.25 47.86
Provisions {# in millions)
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 38) 1.17 1.43
Total 1.17 1.43
Non-current L17 1.43
Current - 2
Current borrowings {¥ in millions)
Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Loans from related parties
Mirja Publishers & Prnters Private Limited {rofer note a below) 1891 -

18.91 -
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 18)
Term loans 20040 20.00
Total 33.91 20.00
Secured 20.00 20.040
Unsecured 1891 -

The Company has obtained unsecured loan from MNirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited and carries inferest mte equal to State Bank of India’s 2 Year MCLR plus 250 BPS pa The facility will be convertible at the
aption of the Company after | year from ag datc and if not d on or before 3 years from agreement date, the Joan shall be repaid by the Company on completion of 3 years.

(This space has been lef blank intentionally)
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22, Trade payables

(% in millions)
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2021
Trade payables of micro enterpnises and small enterprises (Refer note 46) 202 2398
Trade payables of related entities (Refer note 40b) 6.54 4.56
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 59.48 60.98
Total 98.14 59.91
de pavables ageing schedule as a arch 2023 and 31 March 2022
As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of billing
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
As at 31 March 2023:
Undisputed trade payables
outstanding due to miero enterpnses and small enterprises 232 - - - 3212
others 6323 1.57 1.0% 017 66,02
Disputed trade payables
outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises - = = - -
others - - &
Total 95.35 1.57 1.05 0.17 98.14
As at 31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of billing
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
As at 31 March 2022:
Undisputed trade payables
outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 2398 - - - 2398
others 65.90 0.00 0.0 0.03 65.93
Disputed trade payables
outstanding due to micro enterprises and small enterprises a 2 2
others = - - - -
Total 89,58 0.0 000 .03 89.91

There are no "unbilled” and “not due” trade payables, hence the same are not di

23.  Other financials liabilities

| in the ageing

(2 in millions}

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.83 L1z
Employee related liabilities 2.60 10.33
Total 4.43 1145
Current 4.43 1145
Non-current - -
24, Other current liabilities
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues payable 18.11 15.67
Revenue received in advance 1.35 0.39
Total 19.46 16.06
25, Current tax linbilities (net)
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for income tax 2549 -
Total 25.49 =
(This space has been lefi blank intenglonally)
|: j : l\
\ ’ .




Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

26. Revenue from operations

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Sale of products

Finished goods (net of returns) 1,161.39 884,82
Traded goods (net of returns) 21.23 12.11
Less: Discounts (32.45) (37.30)
1,150.17 859.63

Sale of services
License fees 343 2.86
Subseription of mobile application 0.01 0.01

3.44 2.87
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 0.28 0.56
Others 0.00 0.21

0.28 0.77
Total 1,153.89 863.27
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 1,150.45 860.40
Services transferred at a point in time 3.44 287
Total 1,153.89 863.27
The Company operates in only one business segment and has entire sale in India.
Contract balances

For the year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contract liabilities
Revenue received in advance (refer note 24) * 1.35 0.39
Opening balance of contract liabilities 0.39 0.51
Less: Amount of revenue recognised against opening contract liabilities (0.39) (0.51)
Add: Addition in balance of contract liabilities for current year (net of refunds) 135 0.39

1.35 0.39

Closing balance of contract liabilities

* The increase in contract liability is on account of increased operations in the normal course of business,

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Right to return asset and refund liability

Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Refund liabilities
Arising from discounts 37.06 37.77
Arising from rights of return 57.60 60.10
94.66 97.87
Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue as per contracted price 1,229.78 952.89
Adjustments
Sales return (43.44) (52.32)
Discount (32.45) (37.30)
1,153.89 863.27

Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligations are summarised below:

Sale of products
Revenue from sale of books is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, i.e. on delivery of books to customer.

Sale of services
Revenue from sale of service is recognised on accrual basis and when services are provided.

The customer has a right to return material to an extent as may be agreed upon with each customer or within the limits as may be determ ined by the Company.
The customer is also eligible for discounts based on achievement of revenue targets as may be agreed.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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27. Other income

(Z in_millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest income on:
- Bank deposits *
- Bonds
- Loans to related parties #
- Income tax refund
Profit on cancellation of lease
Profit on sales of investment
Others
Total

* underlying assets on which income is recognised are carried at amortised cost.

1.78 24]
0.18 0.18
85.09 61.86
1.58 -
9.77 =
26.91 842
2.50 0.33
127.81 73.20

# Interest income on unsecured loan includes interest accrued in relation to unsecured loan given to related parties. For details Refer note 40b.

28. Cost of materials consumed

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Inventory at the beginning of the year 77.16 3747
Add : Purchases during the year 397.56 246.59
474,72 284.06
Less : Inventory at the end of the year (99.22) (77.16)
Cost of raw material consumed 375.50 206.90

29, Purchase of stock-in-trade

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Purchase of stock-in-trade

30. (Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

18.79

10.46

18.79

10.46

(% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods
Work-in-progress

(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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130.07 83.88
8.07 0.72
138.14 84.60
83.88 108.09
0.72 1.22
84.60 109.31
(53.56) 24.71
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3.

32.

33.

Employee benefits expense

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Salaries, bonus and allowances 97.00 88.57
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 38) 6.57 634
Employee stock option expense 0.08 0.34
Staff welfare expenses 5.16 2.04
Total 108.81 97.29

Finance costs

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest expense

- On debentures

- On borrowings

- On unsecured loans

- On lease liability (refer note 39)
Loan processing fee

Interest on statutory dues
Total

Depreciation and amortization expenses

25.68 24.63
9.60 4.67
2.12 1.02
5.40 4.96
4.76 1.40
3.78 =

51.34 36.68

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 1.67 1.63
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 5) 1.05 1.35
Amortisation on right-of-use assets (refer note 4) 837 7.46
Total 11.09 10.44
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34. Other expenses

35.

ll. "

(% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Publication expenses:
Printing and binding charges
Royalty

Other publishing expenses
Total (A)

Other expenses:

Rent (refer note 39)

Communication cost

Insurance

Travelling and conveyance

Power and fuel expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Management expenses (refer note a below)
Legal and professional fee

Payment to auditor (refer note b below)
Corporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 44)
Bad debts written off’

Provision for expected credit loss
Advertisement, publicity and exhibition
Freight and cartage outward
Miscellaneous expenses

Total (B)

Total other expenses (A+B)

Management expenses

130.87 9348
56,98 52.64
6.71 5.75
194.56 151.87
15.67 11.45
0.73 0.76
092 095
1.99 1.90
277 1.69
11.31 9.01
11.63 7.23
11.09 570
2.10 1.88
4.36 3.96
0.76 1.57
2.99 -
55.66 45.01
26.73 22.14
8.39 10.78
157.11 124.03
351.67 275.90

The Holding Company renders various administrative and management services to its subsidiaries companies to facilitate its day to day operations,
Accordingly, the Holding Company has charged ¥ 11.63 million (31 March 2022: ¥ 7.23 million) towards such services rendered during the year ended 31

March 2023,

Payment to auditors:
As auditor

- For statutory audit

- For limited review*

- Out of pocket expenses

* Includes payment of audit fees amounting ¥ (.24 million paid to erstwhile auditors.

Exceptional items

1.18 1.27
0.83 0.60
0.09 0.01
2.10 1.88

( in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

f

\

Provision for diminution in value of investments (refer note 49)
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36. Income tax

Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Income tax:
Current income tax charge
Tax relating to earlier years

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

111.00 8333
264 18.04
(14.11) (2.48)
99.53 98.89

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

(% in_millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate of 25.168% (31 March 2022: 25.168%)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years

Tax impact of non-deductible expenses

Effect on changes in tax rate

Other adjustments

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or

loss

At the effective income tax rate of 27.04% (31 March 2022: 36.08%)

37 Earnings per share

368.06 274.08
92.63 68.98
2.64 18.04
3.66 11.63
= 0.24
0.60 ~
99.53 98.89
99.53 98.89

Basic earning per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of

Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares into

equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 268.53 175.19
Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS 0.11 0.11
Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted EPS 0.18 0.19
Basic EPS (in ¥) 2,409.75 1,592.64
1,625.64 1,005.95

Diluted EPS (in %)
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38.

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

An amount of ¥ 4.58 million (31 March 2022 : ¥ 4.37 million) for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of the Company’s contributions towards Provident Fund, an amount of T
0.19 million (31 March 2022 : % 0.31 million) for the year has been recognised as an expense in respect of Company’s contributions towards Employee State Insurance, which are deposited with
the government authorities and have been included under employee benefit expenses in the Statement of Profitand Loss

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan govermned by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the Gratuity Aect, employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or
termination of the employment on completion of five years or death while in employement. The level of benefit provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at the time of

retirement/termination age

Under the Company’s gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service or
part thereof in excess of six months subject to a maximum of T 2.00 million. The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the profit and loss account and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for Gratuity Plan.

Statement of profit & loss account

Net employee benefit expense recog (% in millions)

d in employee cost:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 170 Lal
et Interest cost on defined obligation 0.10 0.05
Expected return on plan assets - -
1.80 1.66
Amount recog 1 in Other Comprehensive Income: (2 in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Actuanal gams on obligation .0.35 049

Actuanal gains on assets a.07 0.16
0.42 0.65

Balance sheet

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Opening defined benefit obligation 1033 9.03
Current service cost 170 1.61
Interest cost 074 0.62
Benefits paid from plan assets (0.47) (1.42)
Actuarial gains on obligation 03s 049
Closing defined benefit obligation 12.66 10,33
Non - Current 12.66 10.33
Current - -
Changes in the fair value of plan nssets are as follows: (% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Opening fair value of plan assets 8.39 830
Expected return 0.65 057
Contributions by employer 249 1.60
Benefits paid (0,47) (1.42)
Actuarial gain/(loss) (0.07) {0.18)
Closing fair value of plan assets 11.49 8.89
Provision for gratuity {net of plan assets)

Non-current 117 143
Current - >

The expected contribution to the defined benefit plan in future years 2 3.29 millions ( 31 March 2022: 2 3.07 millions).
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The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
100% 100%

Investments with insurer

The economic and demographic assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.20% 7.20%
Expected rate of return on assets 731% 6.90%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Retirement age (in vears) 60 60
Employee turnover -

- For service upto 5 years 5.00% 5.00%
- For service more than 5 years 1.00% 1.00%
Martality Rate 100% of TALM 2012- 100% of IALM 2012-

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
market.

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be settled,

The impact of sensitivity analysis due to changes in the significant actuarial tions on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table:
(% in Millons)
Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate +1% 11.28 9.17
-1% 1429 11.70
Expected rate of salary increase + 1% 14.24 1167
-1% 11.27 914

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on 2 method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at
the end of the reporting year.

The above defined benefit plan exposes the Company to following risks:

Investment risk:
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present

value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during
the inter-valuation period.

Market risk (interest risk):
Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate

leads to decrease in defined benefit obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of lisbility is
exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Longevity risk:
The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after. Typically for the benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very

material,

Actuarial risk:
Salary increase assumption
Actual salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase to the obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Attrition/withdrawal assumption
If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rates, the benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Similarly if the actual withdrawal rates are lower than assumed, the benefits will

be paid later than expected. The impact of this will depend on the demography of the company and the financials assumptions,

Regulatory risk:
Any changes to the current Regulations by the Government, will increase (in most cases) or decrease the obligation which is not pated. 5 1 the 1 is many fold which will

impact the financials quite significantly.

The following are expected future cash flows to the defined benefit plan (undiscounted):

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Year | 0.45 049
Year 210 5 213 1.60
Year 6to 10 499 423
Abave 10 years 27.06 22.87
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CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821

Notes to financial st ts as at year ended 31 March 2023

39,

Leases

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended 31 March 2023

(% in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Faor the year ended
31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of reporting year 3875 4584
Additions (nate 4) 8023 0.37
Deletions (31 .46) -
Depreciation expense (note 33) (8.37) (7.46)
79.15 38.75

Balance at the end of reporting year

Set out below aré the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

For the vear ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Bal as at the beginning of reporting year 47.86 52.51
Additions 80.22 037
Accretion of interest 5.40 496
Deletion during the year (51.00) -
Profit on cancellation of lease 277
Payments (12.01) (5.97)
Balance as at the end of reporting year §0.25 47.86
Non-current 75.85 41.53
4.40 6.33

Current

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022
633

- Within one year 440

- 1-5 years .30 31.75

- More than 5 years 75.535 978
80.25 47.86

The following are the s recognised in St of Profit or Loss:

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Depreciation expense of night-of-use assets 837 7.46
Interest expense on lease liabilities 540 496
Expense relating to other than non-current leases (included in other expenses) # 1567 11.45
Total recognised in Stat t of Profit or Loss 29.44 23.87

# Lease payments not recognised as a liability

The Company has elected not to recognise a lease liability for current leases (leases with an expected term of 12 months or less) or for leases of low value assets. Payments made under such leases
are expensed on a straight-line basis. The Company does not have any liability to make variable lease paymenis for the right-to-use the underlying asset recognised in the financials.

Tatal cash outflow for current leases and leases of low value for the year ended 31 March 2023 was € 15.67 millions {31 March 2022 - % 11.45 millions).

The table below deseribes the nature of the Company's leasing activities by tvpe of right-of-use asset recognised on balance sheet:
No of right-of-use
assets leased

(T in millions}

No of leases with

No of leases with

Buildings

Termination options expected to be exercised
- 31 March 2023

-31 March 2022

s ter: ion op
None None
None None

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall

due.

The agaregate depreciation on Right-of-use assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2(H06PLC111821
Notes to financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

40. Related party disclosure

Tait he

a. Names of related parties and related party r

Related parties where control exists
Holding company

Fellow Subsidiaries Company

Subsidiary company
Associate company
Associate of Holding company

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year

S Chand And Company Limited

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited

Blackie & Son (Calcutta) Private Limited

BPI (India) Private Limited

DS Digital Private Limited

S. Chand Edutech Private Limited

Convergia Digital Education Private Limited (with effect from 1 July 2021)

Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Limited
Edutor Technologies India Private Limited

Smartivity Labs Private Limited (upto 21 June 2022)

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel and
their relatives are able to exercise significant influence

Key Management Personnel (KMP) & their relatives

Mr. Himanshu Gupta
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwala
Mr. Naveen Rajalani
Mr. Rajagopalan Chandrashekar
Mr.Prateek Dhanuka

Bombay Aesthetics
Blacklead Learning Solutions
Shaara IT Services Private Limited

Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Independent Director
Chief Executive Officer

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

b.  Details of related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties during the period:
(¥ in millions)

For the year ended | For the year ended

Rt 31 March2023 | 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 11.47 7.16
Sale of services
S Chand And Company Limited 3.43 2.86
Subtotal 14.90 10.02

Other income
Interest income on unsecured loan

DS Digital Private Limited 23.68 16.05
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 49.08 40.40
Convergia Digital Education Private Limited 8.93 2.01
S Chand Edutech Private Limited 335 243
New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited 0.06 0.97
Subtotal 85.09 61.86
Expenses

Interest on debentures

S Chand And Company Limited 13.61 13.83
Interest on unsecured loan

Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 1.96 1.02
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 0.16 -
Commission on sale of shares

S Chand And Company Limited 0.46 -
Purchase of books:

Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited 18.79 5.46
Edutor Technologies India Private Limited - 1.11
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 2.00 59.91

(This space has been left blank ipfentionally)
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

Details of related party transactions

(Z in millions)

Particul For the year ended | For the year ended
Artientans 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Printing charges
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 8.35 24.18
S Chand And Company Limited - 0.34
Freight and cartage outward
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited - 0.00
Management expenses
S Chand And Company Limited 11.63 7.23
Advertisement, publicity and exhibition
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited - 0.08
Bombay Aesthetics 2.81 -
Repair & maintenance expense
Edutor Technologies India Private Limited 115 -
Professional fee
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 4,25 2.12
Employee benefit
S Chand And Company Limited 0.42 0.34
Remuneration to KMP *
Mr. Prateek Dhanuka 7.50 6.32
Rent paid (including lease liabilities payment)
Shaara IT Services Private Limited 1.82 -
Director sitting fees
Rajagopalan Chandrashekar 0.18 0.15
Editing charges
Blacklead Learning Solutions 0.38 &
Subtotal 75.47 122.10
Loans given
Satari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited - 5.00
DS Digital Private Limited 5.00 40.00
Convergia Digital Education Private Limited 30.00 63.00
Subtotal 35.00 108.00




Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

Details of related party transactions

(T in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Loans repayment received

Subtotal

Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 22.32 -

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited 10.00 -

Subtotal 32.32 -

Loan taken

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 25.00 -

Subtotal 25.00 -

Loan repaid

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 25.00 -

Subtotal 25.00 -

Debenture repayment made

S Chand And Company Limited 40.00 -
40.00 -

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

Balances outstanding at the year end

(X in millions)

Paticl As at 31 March As at 31 March
articulars 2023 2022
Assets
Investments
Investment in unquoted equity shares
Indian Progressive Publishing Co Private Limited 0.12 0.12
Edutor Technologies India Private Limited (net of impairment) 50.00 100.00
Subtotal 50.12 100.12
Investment in unquoted preference shares
New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited 80.70 80.70
Subtotal 80.70 80.70
Trade receivables
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 1.88 -
Subtotal 1.88 -
Loans and advances receivable
DS Digital Private Limited 248.61 222.30
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 497.96 484.18
S Chand Edutech Private Limited 34.95 31.95
Convergia Digital Education Private Limited 102.85 64.82
New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited - 10.00
Subtotal 884.37 813.25
Security deposit given
Shaara IT Services Private Limited (Security Deposit) 8.00 -
Subtotal 8.00 -
Receivables from related parties
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 1.33 1.33
Convergia Digital Education Private Limited 3.54 3.54
Subtotal 4.87 4.87
~
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited.'
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to {financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

Balances outstanding at the year end

(X in millions)

Particul As at 31 March As at 31 March
rewars 2023 2022

Advance to vendors
S Chand And Company Limited 1.39 -
Subtotal 1.39 -
Other advances
Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited - 0.53
Subtotal - 0.53
Liabilities
Trade payables
Indian Progressive Publishing Co. Private Limited 6.43 -
S Chand And Company Limited - 4.96
Edutor Technologies India Private Limited 0.11 -
Subtotal 6.54 4.96
Optionally convertible debenture issued
S Chand And Company Limited (liability portion) 231.18 24041
S Chand And Company Limited (equity portion) 482.77 489.85
Subtotal 713.95 730.26
Loans payable
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 18.91 17.94
Subtotal 18.91 17.94
Accrued interest on loan payable
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 1.27 048
Subtotal 1.27 0.48
Employee related liabilities
Mr. Prateek Dhanuka - 0.64
Subtotal - 0.64




Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PTC111821
Notes to financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

Key managerial remuneration

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Short term employee benefits 7.50 6.32

Post-employment benefits* - -

Other long-term benefits* = E
7.50 6.32

* Does not include gratuity, since the provision is based upon actuarial for the Company as a whole.

Terms of conditions of transactions with related parties
The transactions with related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail

in arm's length transactions. The settlement of outstanding balances as at year end occurs in cash.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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Chhaya Prakashani Limited
CIN: U22122WB2006PLC111821
Notes to financial statements as at year ended 31 March 2023

41. Financial Instruments: Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations. The
Company’s principal financial assets include investments in equity shares, mutual fund and government securities, advances to related party, trade and other
receivables, securily deposits, cash and short-term depasits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks and advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the shareholders that the Company’s
financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

A. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises two types of risk -
a.) Interest rate risk,
b.) Other price risk; and
c.) Commaodity risk

"The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net deb, the ratio of floating to fixed interest rates of the debtt and other parameters
are all constant in place at 31 March 2023,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of of employee benefits provisions, The sensitivity of the relevant
profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

a. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with fixed interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, afler the
impact of hedge accounting, With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings. as

follows:
Increase/decrease  Effect on profit
in basis points before tax
As at 31 March 2023 +0.50% 0.45
INR Borrowings -0.50% (0.45)
As at 31 March 2022 +0.50% 1.75
INR Borrowings -0.50% (1.75)

b. Other price risk
The Company’s investments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities.

The price risk related to investment in mutual fund schemes is not significant considering the relatively short tenure of underlying portfolio of the mutual fund
schemes in which the Company has invested.

The price risk related to investment in quoted equity instruments is not significant since such investments are not material,

The following table summarises the sensitivity to change in the price of investment in unlisted equity securities (other than investment in subsidiaries and
associate) held by the Company:

) fi
Changes in prices kst on el

before tax
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Unlisted equity instruments +15% -
-15% 5
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Unlisted equity instruments +15% 0.00
-15% (0.00)

c. Commodity risk
Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuation in prices of papers. The Company has risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising
from volatility in the commodity prices. The Company's commodity risk is managed centrally through well established control processes. Further the selling price
of finished goods fluctuates due to fluctuation in price of papers and the Company expects that the net impact of such fluctuation would not be material.
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